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401-409 East Bay Street currently consists of three buildings on two

parcels. Over time, there have been multiple buildings and multiple

parcels on this site, all with differing and changing addresses.

Therefore, for the sake of clarity in this developmental history, the

existing buildings on the site have been labeled Sites A, B, and C. 

The first building, on Site A, at the intersection of East Bay and

Habersham Streets, is a non-contributing building, constructed

sometime between 1954 and 1973. It is in poor condition.

The second building, on Site B, is a contributing building to the

District. It is a one-story brick building and was constructed

between 1888 and 1898. It is in fair condition with the exception of

the south wall (along Bay Lane) which has significant structural

damage.

The third building, on Site C, is a non-contributing building

constructed prior to 1937. It is a one-story brick building and is in

good condition.
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1884

1888

1898

Between 1884 and 1898, Site A served multiple buildings, including

a three-story wood and brick boarding house called the “Bay View

House” and a two-story brick barber shop. A wrap-around awning

connected the buildings. Along the lane, there was a two-story

grocery building that was converted to a “Tin Shop” by 1898.
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3

1916

1937

Between 1916 and 1937, the site remained largely unchanged with

minor alterations occurring at the rear of the buildings. The

Cadastral Survey from 1937 noted the property owner as Pearl H.

Gnann, who also owned a number of the properties on this block.
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1937

Between 1937 and 1947, all the buildings on Site A were demolished

and replaced with a new concrete block building occupying the

entire site. The building was likely designed by Savannah architect

John C. Lebey.

1954
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1973

By 1973, the concrete block building was removed and replaced

with the current building. Originally it appears to have had a drive-

thru canopy which no longer exists. It remained as an operating dry

cleaners until approximately 2018. It has been vacant since.

2024
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1884

1888

1898

In 1884, wood and brick buildings occupied Site B, housing a

machine shop and office storage. By 1888, the buildings were

vacant. By 1898, the buildings had been demolished and replaced

with the current building, a one-story brick structure which housed

a wholesale grocery store.
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1916

1937

By 1916, the building housed Best Laundry. The Cadastral Survey

showed the building was owned by Pearl H. Gnann. According to

the US Census of 1940, Ms. Gnann was born about 1881 and lived

at 425 Bull Street, with her 4 sons, 3 daughters, 2 grandsons, and

2 granddaughters. She owned multiple buildings on this block.
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1937

The building remained largely unchanged after 1898.

1954

1973
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1980s

2024

The building appeared to be vacant and overgrown by the 1980s. It

remains in fair condition, except the south wall along Bay Lane

which is in poor condition.
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1884

1888

1898

From 1884 to 1888, Site C housed a two-story wooden building with

a raised stoop and basement, which served as two dwellings, one

along Bay Street and one along Bay Lane. By 1898, the building had

become a boarding house.
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1916

1937

By 1916, the rear of the building had brick added to the facade,

and the Bay Street portion was serving as a flat, while the Bay Lane

portion served as a dwelling. By 1937, the building had been

demolished and replaced with the existing one-story brick building,

extending all the way to Bay Lane. Pearl H. Gnann was noted as

the owner of this building as well.
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1937

1937
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Sometime between 1954 and 1973, the rear portion of building was

removed.

1973

1954
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1980s

2024

The building appeared to be vacant and boarded by the 1980s. It

remains in good condition.


